Appendix III: HER Records held by Tyne and Wear Specialist Conservation Team (TWSCT) within the Fish Quay conservation area

Key to abbreviations;

SAM: Scheduled Ancient Monument protected by law

LB2, LB2* Listed Building Grade II, grade II*

ER ID	Title	Description	Easting	Northing	Constraints	Period(s)
5490	North Shields Glass Works	Built c.1806 on land owned by Collingwood and Partners. later absorbed into Crighton and Tyzack's Chain and Anchorworks (HER 5486) and then by the foundry (HER 2054).	3630	6864	none	Early Modern C19
1952	North Shields	Area now partly occupied by Clifford's Fort settled by Prior Germanus around the year 1225.	363	686	none	Medieval
	First Medieval Settlement	Workmen digging here in 1819 discovered "a framing of large oaken beamsforming a pier"				C13
7278	Low Lights Tavern	House, now public house of late C18. Painted render, clay tile roof with brick chimneys. 2 storeys.	3625	6861	LB2	Post Medieval
	Brewery bank					C18
	Salt works	Salt works shown on OS 1st Edition	3635		none	Modern, C19
	Iron Foundry	Iron Foundry shown on OS 1s Edition	3634		none	Modern, C19
515	Clifford's Fort and	Mid C19 military barracks building. Later used as workshop of the Submarine Engineers. 2 military	3635	6857	SAM,	Early Modern
	Ballard's smoke house	boundary stones attached. Converted and extended in the 1920's to form a 2 storey smokehouse for herring.			LB2	C19 - C20
7309	Irving's building, Union	Offices, sale rooms, chandler's shop, workshops and warehouse of Richard Irvin and sons. 1913	3624	6856	LB2	Modern, C20
	quay	Red brick with ashlar dressings; slate roof to range on right, flat-roofed to steel-framed or				
		reinforced concrete range to left.				
1972	Lifeboat Station	The lifeboat house of the lifeboat "Northumberland", 1798, was located on the coast adjacent to	3640	6859	none	Post Medieval
		Clifford's Fort.				C18
	Barracks	Barracks dating to before 1792	3645		none	Post Medieval, C18
1970	John Hearn's Shipyard	Tyne wood shipyard. John Hearn was carrying out repairs in 1779 and may already have been	3626	6850	none	Post Medieval
		building. Hearn built at least 23 ships, between 1787 and 1806 the total output was probably more				C18
		than this.				
183	North Shields	Redevelopment after 1390 included reclamation of a plot of land of c. 4 acres, to be covered with	355	680	none	Medieval
	Second Medieval Settlement	around 200 houses. Township was a long narrow strip along the river, carved out of Tynemouth.				C14
15	Small fort at North Shields	"Before the erection of Clifford's Fortto the seaward, at a little distance from this light house	363	685	none	Post Medieval
		[the old Low Light] there was anciently a fort of baskets filled with sand and mortar, with a gun				C17
		placed between each basket" It was one of a pair, erected by the Marquis of Newcastle in 1642				
		It is assumed to be covered by the later platform of Clifford's fort so It is not likely to be found.				
150	C19 defences of Clifford's	In 1881 the original fort was declared obselete as a place to mount guns, but suitable as a base	363	685	SAM, LAG	Early Modern
	Fort	for submarine mining. In 1888 therefore it became the headquarters of the Tyne Division Royal				C19
		Engineers (volunteers) Submarine Miners. Most of the old buildings of the fort were deomlished,				
		new ones were erected, the old gun embrasures were blocked up,a narrow-gauge railway was				
		laid to a new gate in the SE angle to move the mines out to a boat, and two 6 pounder guns were				
		mounted on concrete bases to defend this gate and cover the minefield. Currently in poor condition				
		and undergoing conservation (2004).				
149	Post-medieval defences of	Clifford's Fort was built in 1672, as a successor to a litte fort (c.1642) of "basket's filled with sand	363	685	SAM, LB2*	Post Medieval

Appendix III: HER Records held by Tyne and Wear Specialist Conservation Team (TWSCT) within the Fish Quay conservation area

Key to abbreviations;

SAM: Scheduled Ancient Monument protected by law

LB2, LB2* Listed Building Grade II, grade II*

)	Title	Description	Easting	Northing	Constraints	Period(s)
	Clifford's Fort	and mortar". Designed by Martin Beckman of irregular shape with long axis north-south			LAG	C17-18
2057	The New Low Light	The Low light along with the High light (HER 2129) provided guidance for ships entering the mouth	3626	6841	LB2	Early Modern
		of the Tyne. Built between 1805 and 1808 to replace the earlier Old Low Light, which had become				C19
		obselete due to changes in the channel. Now a fish processing unit				
2056	Tynemouth Borough Gas	Gas works shown on OS 1st edition	3628	6853	none	Modern
	Works					C19
4588	Carr's Pottery/Low Light's	Carr's Pottery 1813-1913 is shown on a photograph reproduced by Hollerton (1997, p 10) in Union Rd	3626	6863	none	Early Modern
	Pottery	Established 1814, probably by Collingwood and Beall.				C19
4587	Dockwray Square	Elegant Georgian square part of initial redevelopment of North Shields at Bank Top begun 1763	3599	6344	none	Early Modern
		First named Bank Top Close, and later Dockwray square. Deteriorated into a slum and demolished				C18 - 19
		1956, to be replaced by flats, which were also demolished in the 1980's.				
4586	Fish Quay	Fish Quay near the Low Light. 27 rudimentary houses erected by the river at the mouth of the Pow	3629	6841	none	Early Modern
		Burn in 1225. Wooden quays were attached to the piles on which the houses were built for moorings				C19
		and sale of fish. The present fish quay dates from the 19th century.				
4585	Fish Market	North shields prospered in C19, becoming an important fishing station and supply base for stores,	3563	6788	none	Modern
		ice, and coal for the merchant and fishingfleet which tied off at an extensive series of small quays				C19
		between Low Light and Bull Ring. A new fish market was built in the market place in 1820 and is				
		shown on Woods 1827 map.				
4575	Methodist New Connection	Methodist New Connection Chapel shown on Woods 1827 map	3594	6834	none	Modern
	Chapel					C19
7308	3 No 12 Union St	House and shop, now workshops. Early C19 house with late C19 shop front. Painted render,	3568	6822	LB2	Early Modern
		wood shop, Welsh slate roof with brick chimney. 3 storeys.				C19
7307	Nos 9-11 Union St	House and shop, now workshops. Ca. 1840 house with late C19 shop front.	3568	6821	LB2	Early Modern
						C19
7855	Grieve's Ironmongers	The firm specialising in supplying materials to ships based at, or visiting, North Shields. Buildings	3568	6813	none	Early Modern
	Lower Bedford st	date from 1874				C19
2059	Low Dock	The only protected graving dock on the Tyne and possibly the oldest surviving one on the river in	3574	6814	LB2	Early Modern
		anything like an original form.				C19
2060	Northumberland Brewery	Northumberland Brewery shown on OS 1st edition.	3570	6807	none	Modern
						C19
4565	Gardner's Brewery	Ralph Gardner of Chirton was imprisoned in 1652 for refusing to close his brewery in North Shields	35	88	none	Post Medieval
		evidence of the Newcastle Corporation attempting to stifle commerce at North Shields.				C17

Appendix III: HER Records held by Tyne and Wear Specialist Conservation Team (TWSCT) within the Fish Quay conservation area

Key to abbreviations;

SAM: Scheduled Ancient Monument protected by law

LB2, LB2* Listed Building Grade II, grade II*

HER ID	Title	Description	Easting	Northing	Constraints	Period(s)
4554	C18 Quay	In the C17, Newcastle continued to attempt to prevent development at North Shields, complaining	363	685	none	Post Medieval
		about the ships unloading and loading there in 1684. However they were ultimately unsuccessful				C18
		because by 1714 a quay had been built at the Low Lights and another near to the ferry boat				
		landing in the west end of the town.				
4553	3 Mill	The earliest mention of milling at North Shields occurs when a mill was burnt in 1726 by the	363	685	none	Medieval
		burgesses of Newcastle.				C13
455	Old Low Light	Old Low Light of 1727, converted into an almshouse, with the lantern turret removed to make room	3629	6846	LB2	Post Medieval
		for an additional storey, and the building now has no resemblance to a lighthouse.				C18
4559	Dogger Letch Bridge	Dogger Letch, swampy ground at the wets end of Low Street, was crossed in the C17 by a	3568	6814	none	Post Medieval
		wooden bridge connecting the present Liddle and Clive Streets.				C17
4558	Pow Burn Bridge	In the mid C17 a bridge crossed the Pow Burn at the east end of the town to give access to the	3631	6863	none	Post Medieval
		main street. In 1648 Newcastle Trinity House contributed to the building of a bridge over the runner				C17
		at the Low Lights.				
4552	2 Salt Pans	Tomlinson and Richardson suggest that there were salt pans on the site of the Later Clifford's fort	362	366	none	Medieval
		which worked from ca.800 until the dissolution of the monasteries and that the Pow Pans were				
		still making salt in the reign of Elizabeth I.				
455	Possible medieval road	An "ancient roadway" of possible medieval date was discovered at the Pow Burn in 1846 at a	363	686	none	Medieval
		depth of 6 feet from the surface, but has not been specifically located.				
4550	Possible medieval Quay or	Possible medieval quay or harbour discovered 12 feet six inches below the surface in the vicinity	363	686	none	Medieval
	harbour	of the Low Light by workmen digging for a gas tank in 1839.				
4549	Old Malting's, Tanner's bank	A brewery is shown at the northern end of the town on Woods map of 1827 (HER 5485)	3632	6878	LB2	Post Medieval
		C18/early C19 sandstone former maltings building, later used as a smoke house. Now workshops				C18
		coursed squared sandstone with ashlar dressings and quoins; brick wing and returns.				
455	Long Staith	by 1714 a quay had been built at the Low Lights (HER 4554) and another near to the ferry boat	3557	6775	none	Post Medieval
		landing at the west end of town - the long staith.				C18
4556	Old High Light	Built 1727 to replace earlier timber structures. Converted to a almshouse in 1727, but still stands	3609	6845	LB2	Post Medieval
		little changed.				C18
2129	New High Light	New High Light completed 1807, and first lit 1810. Lighthouse by John Stokoe of Trinity House,	3605	6836	LB2	Early Modern
		Newcastle Painted aslar with brick, iron balustrade and lead roof. Lighthouse 4 storeys and lantern				C18
		stage. Rebuilt 1860, commemorated by plaque above door.				